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PICA sits on the unceded cultural 
and spiritual homelands of the 
Whadjuk Nyoongar People, who have 
cared for this Country for thousands 
of years. PICA acknowledges 
Whadjuk Nyoongar Peoples as the 
custodians of this place.

We offer our respect and admiration 
of Elders past and present whose 
knowledge helps us understand
this place in profound and 
meaningful ways, and whose 
stewardship continues to keep
this place safe for us all.  
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For the last 30 years, PICA has played a vital 
role in the development and presentation 
of contemporary arts.  In this time, it has 
continued to evolve and respond to the 
needs and desires of artists and audiences 
while playing a leadership role in the 
development of art forms as well as the 
contextualising of local and global practices.

PICA is renowned for the rigour, breadth and 
accessibility of its artistic and engagement 
programs, its high production standards and 
innovative presentation methods. It places 
a high value on the work undertaken by 
artists and distinguishes itself as a creative 
partner as well as a facilitator of cultural 
experiences. Its programs are carefully 
crafted, ensuring conversations not only 
between artists and audiences but across 
art forms, cultures and geographies.

For artists, audiences and other communities 
it serves, PICA is a source of inspiration, a 
resource, a meeting and gathering place, a 
provocateur and most importantly a partner 
in the realisation of big and new ideas.

Our Purpose To foster the development of, and 
engagement with, contemporary
arts and ideas

Our Mission To create career-defining 
moments for artists, life enhancing 
experiences for audiences and 
critical turning points in the 
advancement of art forms

Our Values We approach everything in a
way that is

Generous 
Sustainable
Collaborative
Experimental
Ambitious and
Responsive

Images: Brook Andrew, SMASH IT, 2018, installation view. Photo: Bo Wong.
Janet Carter studio residency. Photo: Daniel James Grant.2 3



2020 at a glance

# Specific demographics identified by the Australia Council, 
including CALD, Aboriginal & Torres Strait Islander, living 
with a disability, emerging artist, young person, LGBTQI+

+ our surveys capture those that identify as CALD, Aboriginal 
& Torres Strait Islander, and living with a disability

35,500 followers across 
our social channels

people attended 
our public and 
learning programs

153 artists supported to 
develop or present 
new work, 105 of 
these from WA

17 labs, workshops, 
lectures and 
professional 
development 
forums for artists 
an arts workers

198,878 people engaged 
with our programs 

23

17 creative 
developments and
studio residencies

64% of artists identified 
with specific 
demographics #

42% of audiences identified 
with specific 
demographics +

exhibitions, 
productions and 
publications presented

82% of audiences saw 
PICA’s programs as 
having relevance

8,401
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Chairperson’s Report

2020 brought a number of firsts for PICA. It was the 
first year of our new four year Strategic Plan, the 
first year of our new three year funding agreement 
with the WA Department of Local Government, 
Sport and Cultural Industries and the first year of 
dealing with the COVID-19 global pandemic.

After several discombobulating weeks as we all 
came to grips with what a global public health 
and economic catastrophe meant for living and 
working in our part of the world, the PICA team did 
what it did best by adapting to the new paradigm 
and figuring out how PICA could continue to 
support contemporary art and artists.

In addition to funding from the State, the Australia 
Council confirmed in 2020 that PICA would 
continue to receive Multi-Arts and Visual Arts and 
Craft Strategy funding. This valuable government 
support, together with various Federal Government 
COVID-19 subsidies including JobKeeper, meant 
that PICA was able to retain most of its permanent 
and casual staff and at the end of 2020, PICA 
remains a sustainable and viable organisation.

PICA’s total income in 2020 was $1,906,125, 
against total expenditure of $2,056,564. Recurrent 
operations therefore made a loss in 2020 of 
$150,439. This loss was, however, offset by 
extraordinary additional income of $473,397, 
being COVID-19 support from Federal government 
programs. This made up for the COVID-19 related 
downturn in sponsorship and philanthropic 
support which is unfortunately likely to extend 
into 2021 while the broader economy recovers.  
Our end of year profit for 2020 of $322,958 will 
be offset by a projected deficit of approximately 
$330,000 for the 2021 financial year.

Our steadfast Federal and State government 
funding, supplemented by further support from 
City of Perth, has allowed PICA to deliver some 
tremendous results against the KPIs in our new 
Strategic Plan. One KPI, of which I am particularly 
proud, relates to the development of arts 
practitioners and artistic practices. PICA hosted 
17 creative developments and studio residencies 
in 2020 and 17 professional forums for artists and 
arts workers (no mean feat when we were closed 
for 3 months!). This “behind the scenes” support 
for artists and arts workers is absolutely vital to 
the development and long-term sustainability of a 
vibrant creative sector in Western Australia.

Towards the end of 2020, PICA commenced 
the development of a plan for an upgraded and 
expanded PICA that will not only enhance PICA’s 
ability to support artists but also contribute 
significantly to the future of the City of Perth in 
terms of creative innovation, city centre activation 
and cultural tourism. Hassell Studio has helped 
PICA develop the initial conceptualisation of our 
plan and we have been able to contribute in a 
meaningful way to the State Government’s new 
master plan for the Perth Cultural Centre precinct.

In addition to our government funding partners, 
my thanks once again to the Minderoo Foundation, 
the Copyright Agency, Wesfarmers Arts, Dulux, 
Grace Fine Art, TCE, the Alex Hotel, Willoughby 
Park Winery and Rocky Ridge Brewing Co for their 
invaluable support.

I am also grateful to our many ART1000 donors, 
Art Ambassadors, Director’s Circle donors and Art 
Commissioners who have continued to support 
PICA in 2020.

Finally, my most heartfelt thanks to the PICA 
Board, including new member Mark Clapham, 
whose steadfastness and collective wisdom have 
helped PICA navigate this unexpected year.  

Robyn Glindemann
Chair

Photo: Daniel James Grant Photo: Daniel James Grant

Director’s Report

2020 began at PICA with such a surge of activity 
and optimism it was hard to imagine that in a few 
short months the world would be turned upside 
down, and that our planned program, like that of 
many arts organisations locally and globally, would 
have to be cancelled, put on hold or postponed to 
a later date.

It was truly a test of our resilience and ability to 
respond quickly to an ever-changing situation. 
While WA came off relatively lightly in relation 
to the COVID-19 pandemic and necessary 
restrictions, we were still required to navigate 
periods of closure, capacity limitations, travel bans 
and financial uncertainty.

Revised schedules, plans and budgets were 
developed and implemented numerous times 
throughout the year, ensuring that we remained 
safe and sustainable as an organisation, while 
assisting artists and arts workers to be the same.

It was thanks to the ongoing and unwavering 
support of our funding bodies, donors, partners 
and receipt of targeted COVID-19 subsidies from 
the Australian Government that we were able to 
retain a significant number of PICA’s permanent 
and casual team members and honour financial 
commitments to independent artists and arts 
workers, even if their projects had to be postponed 
to the following year.

The ability of everyone at PICA and the artists 
we worked with to adapt to our changing 
circumstances and find ways to connect with 
each other and our audiences via digital means 
was astounding and has paved the way for us to 
continue exploring a hybrid live/digital program 
well into the future.

Within this annual report is an overview of our 
artistic program, along with examples of some 
of the ingenuous ways we responded to the 
challenges the year threw us.

But at a glance, and despite our galleries being 
closed from late March to early July and live 
performance not resuming until early September, 
we presented 23 exhibitions, productions and 
publications; supported a total of 153 artists, 
105 of these from WA; attracted a total audience 
of 198,878, 82% of which saw our programs 
as having relevance; and delivered 17 creative 
developments and studio residencies. 

One of the key achievements in 2020 was the 
breadth and diversity of our artists and audiences, 
with 64% of our artists identifying as either CALD, 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander, living with a 
disability, an emerging artist or LGBTQI+.  While 
46% of our audiences identified as either CALD, 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander or living
with a disability.

There were a number of changes to key roles 
at PICA in 2020, beginning with the departure 
of General Manager Caris Harper, whose large 
shoes were ably filled by Natalie Jenkins and 
Georgia Malone until the much-anticipated arrival 
of our newly appointed GM, Jeremy Smith. We 
were thrilled to appoint Ashley Yihsin Chang 
as Engagement Programs Curator and Miranda 
Johnson as the inaugural Hatched Curatorial Fellow.

Sadly, we farewelled our Curator Charlotte 
Hickson, Philanthropy Coordinator Belinda Cobby 
and Communications Manager Kira Rikkers, all 
of whom had contributed significantly to PICA 
during their time here and whose legacies live on. 
However, a number of exciting new appointments 
ensued, including Sarah Wall as Curator, Rebecca 
Kais as Philanthropy Manager and Ryan Sandilands 
as Communications Manager. 

I will conclude by wholeheartedly thanking the 
entire PICA team for navigating all the twists 
and turns that 2020 presented, all with good 
humour and the utmost care and professionalism. 
I thank too the PICA Board for their extraordinary 
commitment, guidance, support and compassion.

Amy Barrett-Lennard
PICA Director
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Artistic Program

PICA’s 2020 artistic program encompassed
a broad range of visual, performance
and interdisciplinary practices and was
designed to:

→ Create lasting impact for artists
 and their work
→ Reflect Australia’s cultural, social and 
 geographic diversity
→ Celebrate the breadth and inventiveness
 of contemporary arts practices

Image: Tina Havelock Stevens, Come Together, Right Now, 2006/2018, installation view. Photo: Bo Wong.8 9



Untitled (Uura)
Curtis Taylor (WA)

First Floor Gallery
19 October 2019 to 5 January 2020

Perth-based Martu artist Curtis Taylor’s first solo 
exhibition brought together multiple streams of 
his practice including sculpture, installation and 
film. Untitled (Uura) is a Martu word described by 
the artist as meaning “stealth or invisible”. When 
mining companies came to Martu land looking for 
uranium, the word uura was used by Martu people 
to explain radiation, something “that is invisible, 
but it’s there, you can feel it”. 

“Curtis Taylor’s works rock me to the bone”
– Visitor

Exhibitions Island Tales: Taiwan and 
Australia, Taipei←→Perth

WA artists - York Noongar community members
with Community Arts Network, Dan McCabe,
Eva Fernandez, Gregory Pryor, Jacobus Capone, 
Olga Cironis, Pilar Mata Dupont and Taiwanese 
artists Chang Wen-Hsuan, Chihhung Liu,
Chiu Cheng-Hong, Kao Jun-Honn + Abbot Lin + 
Master Hsin-Miaw, Wang Ding-Yeh, and
Yang Chi-Chuan. Curated by Chien Cheng-Yi

Taipei Fine Art Museum, Taiwan
16 November 2019 – 1 March 2020

Island Tales was the result of a creative exchange 
process between Taipei and Perth. The collaboration 
saw the curators from both museums change 
places, engage in research in their counterpart 
institutions, and then each organise an exhibition. 
A major international partnership, the dual 
presentation of Island Tales and Unfolding Acts 
formed valuable relationships between Perth and 
Taipei, improved cross-cultural understanding, 
and celebrated Indigenous cultures, other diverse 
cultural communities and specific and unique 
natural environments.

Chalkroom
Laurie Anderson (USA) and 
Hsin-Chien Huang (Taiwan)

First Floor Gallery
9 February – 21 March
Presented in association with Perth Festival

For Chalkroom, audiences entered an ordinarily 
white gallery space to find the walls filled with 
gestural drawings, scrawled across all surfaces 
and reaching the ceiling. After donning a virtual 
reality headset they stepped deeper into an 
immersive world, and journeyed through an 
enormous structure made of words, drawings 
and stories. Audiences were free to roam and fly 
through this realm as words sailed through the air, 
fell into dust, formed and reformed.

“Chalkroom is a stunning and imaginative work of art.” 
– Craig McKeough, Seesaw Magazine

Unfolding Acts 揭露行動:
New Art from Taipei and Perth

Taiwanese artists Chia-En Jao, Yu-Cheng Chou,
Yi-Chun Lo and Dondon Hounwn, and West 
Australian artists Pilar Mata Dupont, pvi collective, 
Sharyn Egan and York Noongar community 
members with Community Arts Network.

Ground Floor Galleries
19 October 2019 to 5 January 2020

The exhibition brought together Western 
Australian and Taiwanese artists whose practices 
examine the social, cultural and economic 
fabric of Perth and Taipei and their surrounding 
geographies, while exploring shared histories, 
civic acts and shifting landscapes to strengthen 
the relationship between the two sister cities and 
increase understanding and mutual respect for the 
others’ culture.

Images: Curtis Taylor, Marlkrti Jina-karpyil (Death of a Featherfoot) 
(detail), 2019. Yu-Cheng Chou, A Working History: LU Chieh-Te (detail), 
2012. Photos: Bo Wong.

Images: Gregory Pryor, Jacobus Capone and Pilar Mata Dupont at Taipei 
Fine Art Museum, Taiwan, 2020. Laurie Anderson and Hsin-Chien Huang, 
Chalkroom, 2017, exhibition view. Photo: Bo Wong.

“My 1st time experience of VR art. I’m a lover of 
interactive art. But this was next level. Want to spend 
more time in each room as 30 minutes is only a taster 
of the world inside of there. Definitely recommend.” 
– Visitor

“Great artwork which represents different aspects 
of cultural and social background. Very interesting. 
It’s so good to have the Chinese guided tour service 
which helps to enhance the experience for people 
from different cultures.” – Visitor
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Thunderhead
Tina Havelock Stevens (NSW)

Ground Floor Galleries
9 February – 21 March 

Presented in association with Perth Festival

Thunderhead was the first solo exhibition by 
Tina Havelock Stevens, a leading Australian 
artist who has been a prolific collaborator and 
cultural producer across music, film, visual art and 
performance. This exhibition, which came at a 
pivotal point in Havelock Stevens’ career, featured 
a series of works filmed and produced by the 
artist across a 14-year period as well as a newly 
commissioned sculptural work titled
HOLUS BOLUS (2020). 

Hudson Valley Ruins
Jacky Connolly (USA)

Screen Space
9 February – 21 March 

Jacky Connolly’s 30 minute narrative film 
shot entirely in a virtual world created by the 
artist in The Sims 3 was a captivating work 
that exploited the possibilities and limitations 
of the game to generate a narrative, 
commentating on modern family life.

Prototype Care Packages
 
Curated by Lauren Carroll Harris
Online - youaretheprototype.art/gallery-2020/
17 April – 12 August
 
PICA partnered with Prototype, Arcadia Films and 
the Institute of Modern Art Brisbane to provide 
Prototype Care Packages, a series of 11 new 
and underseen video works by Australian and 
international artists. Among the works featured 
was The Phone Booth Project (2012), a short film 
by Martu filmmaker Curtis Taylor and Melbourne 
artist Lily Hibberd made in collaboration with the 
communities of Parnngurr and Punmu. 

Hatched National 
Graduate Show 2020

A key event in PICA’s ongoing commitment 
to supporting the careers of Australia’s most 
promising emerging artists, Hatched 2020 featured 
the work of 24 freshly graduated artists from 
across the country.

The closure of state borders due to the COVID-19 
pandemic prevented interstate artists from travelling 
to Perth to attend Hatched. PICA found creative 
ways to continue to support emerging practice 
and ensure all artists, no matter where they were 
based, could take part in professional development 
opportunities and be closely engaged with the 
exhibition and each other.

Artists connected with the PICA team digitally, 
with some artists spending many hours on Zoom 
supervising the installation of their work. This was 
an incredibly valuable experience, leading artists 
to consider their work from the perspective of 
someone unfamiliar with it as they communicated 
and resolved complex display requirements 
in dialogue with PICA’s exhibitions team. This 
experience sat alongside digital peer-to-peer 
networking sessions, mentoring, professional 
development talks and public programming.

Ohni Blu (NSW), L.A.K.R.M. Bruce (NSW),
Ella Callander (QLD), Olivia Davies (VIC),
Saleheh Gholami (WA), Rory Gillen (ACT),
Alexandra Hobba (VIC), Emma Rani Hodges (ACT), 
Annie Huang (WA), Emma Hutton (QLD),
Alexandra Jonscher (NSW), Nina Juniper (WA), 
Daniel Kristjansson (WA), Luci Lee (NT),
Patrick McDavitt (NSW), Brooke Mitchell (SA),
Jody Rallah (QLD), Siahne Rogers (WA),
Rachel AV Sherwood (NSW), Tina Stefanou (VIC), 
Philip Sulidae (TAS), Truc Truong (SA),
Michelle Vine (QLD), Keemon Williams (QLD)

All Galleries
10 July – 11 October

“Havelock Stevens is one of the more exciting 
contemporary artists working today, with an astute 
pulse on the collective psyche, but also great 
humanity that explores collective empathy, shared 
vulnerabilities and a search for belonging.”
– Gina Fairley, ArtsHub 

Images: Tina Havelock Stevens, Thunderhead, 2020, exhibition view.
Jacky Connolly, Hudson Valley Ruins, 2016, installation view.
Photos: Bo Wong. Curtis Taylor and Lily Hibberd, The Phone Booth
Project (still), 2012. Image: Hatched: National Graduate Show 2020, exhibition view. Photo: Bo Wong.12 13



Refracted Reality

Hoda Afshar (NSW), Bruno Booth (WA),
Helen Britton (GER/WA), Max Pam (WA),
Karrabing Film Collective (NT), Bruce Slatter and 
Nicole Slatter (WA), Valerie Sparks (VIC),
Angela Tiatia (NZ/NSW), James Walker (WA),
Ian Williams (WA)

Curated by Anna Louise Richardson
Ground Floor Galleries
3 November 2020 - 10 January 2021

Refracted Reality featured ten artists and collectives 
in a curated selection of responses to the window 
as a motif or metaphor. It echoed questions of 
privacy, representational fictions in a post-truth 
era and a renewed interest in both the intimacy 
and constrictions of interior space in the wake of 
mass self-isolation. Artists made visible the chaos 
of the urban domestic, digital landscapes and 
social upheaval, while revealing imaginary gardens, 
introspective interiors and sublime landscapes.

Works in the exhibition were offered for sale to 
PICA donors and other supporters at the PICA 
Salon Vernissage on Saturday 31 October.

Forest of Voices
Olga Cironis (WA)

First Floor Gallery
3 November 2020 - 10 January 2021

For this much-anticipated solo exhibition, leading 
West Australian artist Olga Cironis extended an 
invitation to the public to anonymously share their 
own stories about intimacy, touch and connection. 
Audio recordings gathered by the artist became 
fragmented whisperings of desire, love, pain, loss 
and fear in a sound installation that gave form to a 
collective archive of voices.

“Cironis’ work is psychologically loaded with 
meaning, provoking and seducing the viewer, 
navigating them through history and inviting 
them to question our social and environmental 
connections.” – Arts Review

“Variety and excellent representation as always at 
PICA.” – Audience

Brook Andrew: SMASH IT
Brook Andrew (VIC)

Screen Space
3 November 2020 - 10 January 2021

Brook Andrew’s video SMASH IT (2018) formed 
part of PICA’s NAIDOC week programming, held 
from 8-15 November 2020. Featuring excerpts from 
a series of interviews the artist conducted with 
First Nations leaders, SMASH IT draws attention 
to historical events that have occurred in different 
places and times and their contemporary legacies, 
connecting traumatic histories in Australia with 
international experiences and discourse.

On Exactitude in Science
Alan Butler (Ireland)

Performance Space
3 –  6 December
Presented in association with XR:WA 2020

This stunning work, presented on two screens, 
comprised Godfrey Reggio’s motion picture 
Koyaanisqatsi (1983) in synchronicity with Butler’s 
shot-for-shot remake Koyaanisgtav (2017), which he 
transposed into a new form using the virtual worlds 
within the Grand Theft Auto video game series.

“Alan Butler’s video piece was amazing!” – Visitor

FourByFour: Fleeting

Reading Room
3 – 6 December
Presented in association with XR:WA 2020

Fleeting was a virtual reality transportation into 
PICA’s history as a former school and one of four 
immersive VR short films produced by Revelation 
Perth International Film Festival and created in 
collaboration with Co3 Contemporary Dance and 
Tura New Music.

Images: Valerie Sparks, Andromeda & Waratah, from the series 
Sanctuary, 2019, installation view of Refractive Reality, 2020.
Olga Cironis, Forest of Voices, 2020, exhibition view. Photos: Bo Wong.

Images: Brook Andrew, SMASH IT, 2018, installation view.
Photo: Bo Wong. Alan Butler, On Exactitude in Science (still), 2017.
FourbyFour: Fleeting, 2020. Image courtesy the artist.14 15



This is not personal
Jen Jamieson (WA)

Studio Two
17 January – 1 February 2020
Pilot Showings

Commissioned by PICA
Presented as part of FRINGE WORLD 2020 

This is not personal was an intimate 
workshop performance that allowed participants 
to create a personalised set of sign-cards to 
assist in times of difficulty. Over an hour together, 
small groups shared experiences and developed 
responses to the challenges of life with the goal of 
fostering mental wellness.

Initial concept developed through KISS club 2019 
with PICA and pvi collective

“Jen was amazing! Absolutely love the idea of the 
calling cards and being able to be a part of the 
creative process. Making the cards with complete 
strangers was eye opening, I am often stuck in my 
own world but it was great knowing everyone is in
the same boat, pretty much.”– Audience member

Lipstuck
Daley Rangi (WA)

Performance Space
28 January – 1 February
World Premiere

Presented as part of FRINGE WORLD 2020

An intimate queer kaleidoscope, fusing live alchemy, 
participatory performance, and verbatim storytelling. 
Experimental artist Daley Rangi laid bare stories 
behind the lip shade, sharing the engrossing 
anecdotes and insights of a diverse community of 
humans. Vividly dissecting the zeitgeist of lipstick, 
Lipstuck examined its history as both a tool of body 
politics and a weapon of oppression.

Initial concept developed through KISS club 2019 
with PICA and pvi collective

“Rangi asserts a theatre for all… a jubilant and inclusive 
celebration of everyone’s right to embrace ourselves.” 
– 4.5 stars - Patrick Gunasekera, Pelican

Performance

“…what makes her works so special is her ability 
to create a warm and safe environment in which to 
forge a connection with audience members. This 
is my fifth experience of a Jamieson work and, 
as always, I emerged feeling the blossom of joy 
that comes from feeling that you have been heard 
and understood. We all need a bit of “This Is Not 
Personal” in our lives” – Nina Levy, Seesaw

Transmission
Janet Carter (WA)

Performance Space
18 & 25 January 2020
Pilot Showing

Commissioned by PICA
Presented as part of FRINGE WORLD 2020

A work in development, Transmission explored 
queer desire and culture through a series of 
happenings including a town hall meeting, 
installation and queer community party. A counter-
response to loss and the failure to transmit, 
with reference to the AIDS epidemic and the 
generational loss of the 80s and 90s, this work 
recognises the potential of each body to be a 
transmitter of knowledge and history.

“The vulnerability was moving, great performer, 
the personal nature of the content is important for 
people to see.” – Audience member

Slutdrop
Jacinta Larcombe (WA)

Performance Space
4 – 14 February
World Premiere

Presented as part of FRINGE WORLD 2020

Slutdrop was a personal performance-
documentary from creator, performer and ex-
stripper, Jacinta Larcombe. This new work strutted 
through movies, music and the media’s portrayal of 
working in the sex industry, mixing pop songs with 
periods in this intimate striptease that uncovered 
the industry’s secrets. A hugely successful SOLD 
OUT season was extended to become one of 
Perth’s festival season’s biggest hits!

WINNER
FRINGE WORLD WA Theatre Award Winner
FRINGE WORLD Melbourne Fringe Tour Ready 
Award Winner

FINALIST
FRINGE WORLD Martin Sims Award 

Initial concept developed through KISS club 2019 
with PICA and pvi collective

“Larcombe’s honest and cheeky on-stage persona 
is ever-so likeable. It’s impossible not to take 
seriously, listen to and sympathise with someone 
who gives so much of themself in a performance, 
both physically and emotionally. Larcombe has 
the ability to make each audience member feel 
like they’re one-on-one: a rare talent that can’t be 
overstated.” – Claire Trolio, Seesaw

“I cried my eyes out. A voice that desperately needs 
to be HEARD! I loved it” – Audience Member

Images: Jen Jamieson, This is not personal, 2020.
Janet Carter, Transmission, 2020. Photos: Daniel James Grant

Images: Daley Rangi, Lipstuck, 2020.
Jacinta Larcombe, Slutdrop, 2020. Photos: Daniel James Grant16 17



xhe (online)
Daniel Kok (Singapore) &
Miho Shimizu (Japan)

A live performance in Singapore streamed across 
the world via Zoom
15 August

Presented by PICA and Dance Nucleus,
Singapore and supported by the National Arts 
Council, Singapore.

xhe (online) (2020) was an online adaptation of 
xhe (2018), a live durational performance by Daniel 
Kok and Miho Shimizu, which was adapted and 
presented in response to the impact of COVID-19 
and new working parameters for live work. 

Daniel Kok had been scheduled to visit Perth in 
March 2020 with his collaborative work Bunny, 
however due to COVID-19 the work had to be 
postponed. Daniel and PICA stayed connected, 
however, and responded to these conditions by 
presenting xhe (online), a one-off, live 5-hour 
performance that playfully experimented with hybrid 
modes of making and presenting live performance.

A choreographic bricolage of different forms - 
installation art, dance, music, film - xhe (online) was 
staged in Singapore and streamed remotely across 
the world to 19 countries, bringing different artists 
and audiences together in search for the elusive 
figure ‘xhe’. Recognising the participatory nature 
of the original work and the current question of 
physical distance, xhe (online) reflected on what is 
lost or gained with the ubiquity of telecommuting, 
while transcending the limitations of the computer 
screen and reviving a sense of social proximity.

“Choreographer/director Daniel Kok and the team 
behind xhe (online) have courageously followed 
through on a risk of highly imaginative, challenging 
and ambitious proportions – and without such 
audacity, our human failings cannot ever be tested 
and understood through art.”
– Patrick Gunasekera, Seesaw

Valentine
Rachael Woodward (WA)

Performance Space
21 September – 2 October

Presented by Awesome Festival in
association with PICA

Like a story book that came to life before your 
eyes, Valentine combined shadow puppetry, 
animation and physical theatre. Designed for 
families and children Valentine offered an honest, 
playful, and interactive take on what it means to 
love and lose somebody.

Images Left & Right: xhe (online), 2020. Screen grab from performance.
Rachel Woodward, Valentine, 2020. Photo: Daniel James Grant.18 19



Artist Development

PICA’s 2020 Artist Development program 
included studio residencies, creative 
developments, professional development 
forums, labs and workshops. It is aimed at 
developing future focussed arts practitioners 
and artistic practices through the provision of 
space, time, resources and critical feedback 
as well as exposure to new skills, networks 
and methodologies.

Image: Brent Harrison, 2020 Artist in Residence. Photo: Daniel James Grant.20 21



Studio Residencies

Astro Morphs
Bianca Sharkey and
James Doohan (WA)
4 February – 19 April
Drawing on backgrounds in visual art, science, 
dance and costume making, Astro Morphs worked 
on developing a new body of work, exhibited at 
Goolagatup Heathcote in 2021. 

Emma Horvát &
Ómra Caoimhe (WA)
4 February – 19 April
Working with objects and photographic material, 
collaborators Emma Horvát and Ómra Caoimhe 
explore lived experiences of trauma.

Hatched Artists:
Saleheh Gholami, Annie Huang, 
Siahne Rogers (WA)
3 August – 6 September

WA Hatched artists Annie Huang, Saleheh Gholami 
and Siahne Rogers undertook a month-long 
residency in PICA’s Studio Two. This provided an 
opportunity for the three artists to engage with 
each other’s practices in a shared studio space to 
generate a creative and supportive environment 
between the three emerging artists.

“PICA will give you a chance to show your work to a 
wider audience and you will realise no matter what 
your work is about, you will have your audience and 
there are people who are looking forward to help you 
and listen to you. This is so important for emerging 
artists.”  – Salaheh Gholami, artist Hatched 2020

Brent Harrison (WA)
12 October – 23 December Text
Using photography, sculpture and installation. Brent 
Harrison investigated heteronormative language 
surrounding gay male homosexuality and how this 
translates to ideas of effeminacy and shame.

Creative Developments

Jen Jamieson (WA) 
15 January – 1 February
A second stage development of This is not 
personal leading into the work’s pilot showings.

Janet Carter (WA)
14 January – 1 February
A first stage development of Transmission leading 
into the work’s pilot showings.

“Being fully supported by an institution, with both 
in-kind and financial support, has been invaluable. 
It has progressed the work in ways I couldn’t 
have done otherwise. It feels especially significant 
because the work addresses a set of minority 
identities and ways of being in the world that I feel 
strongly need to be recognised, supported, but also 
given space to express themselves as they need to 
in the world. PICA certainly helped me to do this”
– Janet Carter

Daley Rangi (WA)
13 – 28 January 
A third stage development of Lipstuck ahead
of the work’s premiere..

“Working with the entire, supportive PICA team 
was priceless, allowing me to focus entirely on the 
work, knowing that the team were working hard 
to bring in diverse audiences to the show. Being 
able to develop the work in the space with assisted 
dramaturgy and design was amazing, and it’s been 
the most fulfilling artistic experience I’ve ever had.”
– Daley Rangi

Jacinta Larcombe (WA)
15 – 22 January 
A third stage development of Slutdrop ahead of
the work’s presentation.

Images: 2020 Artists in Residence. From top, Astro Morphs, Emma & 
Omra, Siahne Rogers, Brent Harrison Photos: Daniel James Grant.

Images: Jen Jamieson, This is not personal, 2020. Janet Carter, 
Transmission Town Hall, 2020. Daley Rangi, Lipstuck, 2020.
Jacinta Larcombe, Slutdrop, 2020. Photos: Daniel James Grant.22 23



KISS club (WA) 
Creative development: 2 July – 2 September
Performances: 3 & 4 September
Digital Pass: 11 September – 20 September
PICA Performance Space & online via YouTube

Curated, presented & produced by PICA &
pvi collective

KISS club returned in 2020 for its fourth year in 
partnership with pvi collective. As a performance 
event for ideas in development, this year embraced 
the changes affected by COVID-19 and supported 
artists to return to work post Perth’s lockdown 
period. As PICA’s first live performance since 
February 2020, KISS club offered a chance to test 
new ways of working. This included two intimate, 
reduced-capacity live performances, continuing 
the KISS club model of testing 10 minutes of a 
work with a live audience and receiving feedback. 
An addition to this model was the creation of a 
digital pass for online audiences, made possible 
through 7 film shoots with each artist creating a 
digital version of their work.

Works in development:
Imaginary Friend by Danielle Freakley (WA)
neurodiVERSE by Gabbi Fusco (WA)
Khatarnaaka Khaza (A Dangerous Woman) by 
Dureshawar Khan (WA)
Mummy’s Plastic presents Generating Infinite 
Worth by Rose Kingdom-Barron (WA)
Outcalls Only by Sam Nerida (WA)
Takatāpui by Daley Rangi (WA)
Zoology by Talya Rubin & Nick James
(Too Close to the Sun) (WA)

“Hearing directly from audience members straight 
after a performance was wonderful, such fresh 
feedback that was really vivid and instructive. Being 
able to make work in the performance space at 
PICA was fantastic… Really fantastic testing ground 
to grow new ideas. There is a lot of talk about 
experimentation and fostering that, but KISS club 
really did do just that. It opened up an avenue for 
experimentation in a supportive environment.”
– 2020 KISS club artist

Jen Jamieson (WA)
3 – 11 October 
A research stage to explore other modes of 
presentation for This is not personal, including 
installation, print and online engagement.

Creative Developments continued

Image Left: Gabbi Fusco in KISS club, 2020. 
Images Right: Rose Kingdom-Barron in KISS club, 2020.
Dureshawar Khan in KISS club, 202024 25



The Last Great Hunt (WA)
Bad Baby Jean 
Creative Development: 19 October – 10 November
Work in progress showings: 11 - 14 November
PICA Performance Space & online via YouTube

Bad Baby Jean continued PICA’s hybrid approach 
to programming during 2020. Originally at this 
time, PICA and The Last Great Hunt had planned 
to premiere a new work, which had been affected 
by travel restrictions with two of the work’s key 
creatives being located interstate. As an alternative, 
the Hunters responded to the moment and boldly 
undertook a second stage creative development 
of Bad Baby Jean at PICA, whilst working remotely 
and online with two cast members from their 
respective homes in Melbourne and Sydney. 

Each showing of the work gathered audiences 
simultaneously at PICA and online to witness 
an unfolding cardboard western noir. The result 
was 30 minutes of play and cinematic mash-ups 
combining elements of animation, puppetry, live 
performance and technical wizardry, notably 
framed with The Last Great Hunt’s trademark wit, 
humour and innovative DIY capabilities.

Creative Developments continued

Janet Carter (WA)
UNTITLED
20 October – 20 December
Using a speculative fiction framework, Janet Carter 
undertook alternate world building by asking: “What 
if we lived in a world where our kinship ties were 
untethered from gender and biology?” Creating 
her own queer Elder avatar, Janet also collaborated 
with three emerging artists, Henry Boles, Caroline 
Duca and Aisyah Sumito, and explored methods to 
counteract the current precarious IRL world we live in.

“This development was a chance to interrogate the 
work, aim higher with the tech elements and stretch 
our story out. It has definitely invigorated us to 
continue to peel back the layers on this work.”
– The Last Great Hunt Artist

Supported by PICA, Minderoo Foundation,
The Last Great Hunt’s Creative Development 
Partner, Google Australia through Google’s 
Creative Lab and Lotterywest through the 
Lotterywest COVID-19 Relief Fund.

The Kabuki Drop (WA) &
Ian Sinclair (WA/NSW)
Whale Fall 
Across July – December
Across an extended development period, artists 
undertook stages of creative collaboration with 
TransFolk of WA. This included training, casting 
and consultation, which culminated in a script 
reading with members of WA’s trans and gender 
diverse community.

Image Left: The Last Great Hunt, Bad Baby Jean, 2020. Images Right: 
The Last Great Hunt, Bad Baby Jean, 2020. Janet Carter, Untitled, 2020. 
Whale Fall cast, 2020. Photos: Daniel James Grant.26 27



Labs & Workshops

Flock #18
12 May
Online via Zoom

Presented by PICA and FLOCK

FLOCK is a monthly forum for Perth independent 
and freelance artists of all genres to share practice 
and conversation with each other. FLOCK #18 was 
hosted online by PICA and included a workshop by 
Janet Carter and Patrick Gunasekera, which asked 
participants to investigate the spaces within which 
they were isolating during the COVID lockdown. 
This was followed by a conversation facilitated by 
Alex Desebrock, discussing sector gaps amongst 
COVID-19 and how organisations (like PICA)
could help.

“I am so grateful for this critical safe art space to 
connect with art peers, and also for the professional 
format and standard of the workshops and 
discussions.”
– Flock #18 Participating Artist

Queer Avatar
Creation Workshop
Janet Carter
5 & 12 December

Janet introduced her project in development by 
way of invitation to create a queer avatar in a new 
world full of possibility.

Shifting Terrain: An Online 
Professional Development 
Forum For Emerging Artists
12 September
Online via zoom

This forum was aimed at emerging artists and 
programmed to coincide with the Hatched National 
Graduate Show.  Brisbane-based Dr. Rea Saunders, 
Melbourne-based Eugenia Lim and London-based 
Dr. Kate McMillan shared their experiences and 
expanded on how they developed their studio 
practice in a challenging and constantly shifting 
contemporary art environment.

‘Wonderful session with articulate caring people - 
thank you all for your openness and sharing.’
– Hatched 2020 Artist

Image Left:Janet Carter, 2020 Artist in Residence. Photo: Daniel James Grant.
Images Right: Flock #18, 2020. Screen grab from event. Janet Carter, 2020 Artist in 
Residence. Photo: Daniel James Grant.28 29



Public, Learning and
Community Engagement Programs

PICA’S 2020 public, learning and community 
engagement programs provided a variety 
of live and virtual experiences for our 
audiences, including school students and 
their teachers, community groups and those 
with diverse cultural backgrounds and 
abilities. These programs are designed to 
connect artists with audiences, build social 
bridges and expand the relevance and reach 
of contemporary arts.

Image: Artist talks for Hatched: National Graduate Show 2020. Photo: Daniel James Grant.30 31



Artist Talks 10

School Tours 40

On-line Activities for
young people and families 5

Artists Engaged 45

Targeted programs for
diverse communities 11

Digital Engagement

PICA’s adaption to the pandemic saw art being 
experienced with proximity in mind – through 
Virtual Walkthroughs of each exhibition. These 
walkthroughs were meticulous and vivid videos 
that captured the marvels of our curated 
exhibtions, allowing those unable to travel to still 
reach and engage with PICA’s artistic program. 

PICA worked with resident artists Astro Morphs 
who created a series of PICA at Home online 
learning programs for people of all ages. These 
were made available through PICA’s website and 
YouTube channel and included activities that 
delved into craft, science, nature, and making. 

During the Hatched 2020 exhibition PICA created 
discussion driven digital content with Nathan 
Beard and Esther Anatolitis. This video chat 
looked at Hatched in the context of the Australian 
contemporary art landscape and the university 
price increase on arts degrees.

Image: 2020 Artists in Residence, Astro Morphs, 202032 33



Forest of Voices 
Community Engagement 

PICA worked with artist Olga Cironis to identify 
a number of Culturally and Linguistically Diverse 
(CaLD) communities that might be interested in 
contributing to the creation of her work through 
the sharing of their stories of love and intimacy 
and how they find their own strength through 
loss and grief. The project provided an important 
opportunity to approach communities and groups 
that PICA had previously worked with as well 
as those that were new to the organisation. The 
groups we engaged included Nigerian, Palestinian, 
French, Latino, and intercultural community groups 
and creative artists around Perth.  

The process relied heavily on the guidance and 
recommendations of community leaders, who were 
best placed to suggest a meeting where everyone 
felt comfortable. As a result, these meetings often 
took place at one of the community member’s home 
or a communal space where people could enjoy a 
warm and relaxing environment for a morning or 
afternoon tea. Food was often contributed by those 

present, and was an important element that added 
to the shared experience. During these meetings, it 
was very important to allow the community members 
to introduce each other and share their personal 
stories, and then for the artist to talk about her 
personal experiences, before outlining the details 
of her project. These conversations and meetings 
were crucial for Cironis and for PICA to connect with 
various communities outside of the PICA premises. 

This was also a timely project for PICA as we were 
just emerging out of the first COVID lockdown 
and it was not possible to have large gatherings 
of people. As people were still cautious about 
venturing into public spaces, the project allowed 
the artist to build critical connections with potential 
participants in familiar and safe environments. 
These carefully forged connections drew the 
participants to PICA to see the exhibition once it 
had opened and led to a number of them speaking 
at our public forum Many Voices: Stories of Love 
and Connection.

Image Left: Many Voices: Stories of Love and Connection, 2020,
Photo: Daniel James Grant. Image Right: Olga Cironis, Forest of Voices, 
2020, exhibition view. Photo: Bo Wong.34 35



Support

As a not-for-profit community 
asset, PICA belongs to all Western 
Australians. It’s where we come for 
enriching, uplifting and life-changing 
experiences. A place where the 
next generation of creative talent is 
nurtured, mentored and inspired. 

PICA extends its heartfelt thanks 
to its Donors for sticking by the 
organisation during a particularly 
difficult year. PICA is so grateful for 
their generosity and loyalty, which 
enabled the institution to continue 
to support artists through the 2020 
program and to welcome back 
audiences when we were able. 
 

In 2020:

ART1000 Donors nurtured the next generation of 
artists and arts lovers through the annual Hatched 
National Graduate Show and the provision of free 
education resources and tours;

Art Ambassadors provided significant career 
development opportunities for local artists and 
arts professionals, including through PICA’s studio 
residency and creative development programs;

Director’s Circle Donors supported ambitious artist 
projects including Thunderhead by Tina Havelock 
Stevens and the significant group show Refracted 
Reality curated by Anna Louise Richardson; and

Art Commissioners enabled the creation of a new, 
large-scale sound installation Forest of Voices by 
leading Western Australian artist Olga Cironis.

Despite the disruption to normal programming, 
PICA delivered a full and engaging calendar of 
events for our family of supporters, including a 
PICA Donor tour to Adelaide and the annual PICA 
Salon Vernissage; the flagship event for PICA’s 
award-winning donor program. The Adelaide 
tour offered so much in one memorable long 
weekend and celebrated the best in Australian 
contemporary art and cultural events. 

PICA Salon Vernissage returned to its much-
loved format in 2020, launching Refracted 
Reality in a unique celebration of contemporary 
art, music, food, drink and fashion. As part of 
PICA’s commitment to supporting artists, all 
works were available for sale on the night with 
proceeds of more than $80,000 returning directly 
to the artists. In a year like no other, it provided an 
ideal opportunity for supporters to dust off their 
finery, mingle with like-minds, buy art from PICA’s 
specially curated selection, and support artists 
when they needed it most. 

Image: Hatched: National Graduate Show 2020, opening event.
Photo: Daniel James Grant.36 37



2020 artists and creatives

Curtis Taylor Untitled (Uura)
Curtis Taylor

Unfolding Acts 揭露行動:
New Art from Taipei and Perth
Chia-En Jao, Yu-Cheng Chou,
Yi-Chun Lo and Dondon Hounwn,
Pilar Mata Dupont, pvi collective,
Sharyn Egan and York Noongar community 
members with Community Arts Network

Island Tales:
Taiwan and Australia, Taipei←→Perth
York Noongar community members with 
Community Arts Network, Dan McCabe, 
Eva Fernandez, Gregory Pryor,
Jacobus Capone, Olga Cironis,
Pilar Mata Dupont, Chang Wen-Hsuan, 
Chihhung Liu, Chiu Cheng-Hong,
Kao Jun-Honn + Abbot Lin +
Master Hsin-Miaw, Wang Ding-Yeh,
and Yang Chi-Chuan,
Curated by Chien Cheng-Yi

Chalkroom
Hsin-Chien Huang
Laurie Anderson

Thunderhead
Tina Havelock Stevens

Hudson Valley Ruins
Jacky Connolly

Hatched: National 
Graduate Show 2020
Ohni Blu, L.A.K.R.M. Bruce,
Ella Callander, Olivia Davies,
Saleheh Gholami, Rory Gillen,
Alexandra Hobba, Emma Rani Hodges, 
Annie Huang, Emma Hutton,
Alexandra Jonscher, Nina Juniper,
Daniel Kristjansson, Luci Lee,
Patrick McDavitt, Brooke Mitchell,
Jody Rallah, Siahne Rogers,
Rachel AV Sherwood, Tina Stefanou,
Philip Sulidae, Truc Truong, Michelle Vine,
Keemon Williams

Refracted Reality
Hoda Afshar, Bruno Booth, Helen Britton, 
Max Pam, Karrabing Film Collective, Bruce 
Slatter and Nicole Slatter, Valerie Sparks, 
Angela Tiatia, James Walker, Ian Williams, 
Curated by Anna Louise Richardson 

Forest of Voices
Olga Cironis

Brook Andrew: SMASH IT
Brook Andrew

On Exactitude in Science
Alan Butler

FourByFour: Fleeting
Choreographer: Claudia Alessi
Dancer: Joe Omodei
Composer: Lachlan Skipworth
VR Director: Stephanie Senior
VR Coordinator: Mahmudi Raz
Coordinator: Kaela Halatau

This is not personal
Creator & Performer: Jen Jamieson
Outside Eye: Moya Thomas

Transmission
Creator, Director & Performer: Janet Carter
DJ: Peter Foley (Lucky Pete)
Co-Conspirators: Henry Boles, Pia Coates, 
Patrick Gunasekara, Noemie Huttner-Koros, 
Marziya Mohamedali, Reece Plunkett,
Opie Robertson, Aisyah Sumito &
Graeme Watson 

Lipstuck
Creator & Performer: Daley King
Dramaturg & Movement Director:
Ivan Karlsson
Set Designer: Laura Heffernan
Dress Maker: Dani Chilton

Slutdrop
Creator & Performer: Jacinta Larcombe
Director & Dramaturg: Moya Thomas
Creative Producer: Zoe Hollyoak

xhe (online)
Choreographer/Director: Daniel Kok 
Visual Artist: Miho Shimizu
Performers: Dapheny Chen, Pat Toh,
Jereh Leung, Syimah Sabtu 
Videographers: Loo Zihan, Chan Sze Wei
Sound Artist: Zai Tang
Production Manager: James Tay
Production Assistant [live feed]:
Chan Hsin Yee 
Stage Manager: ARTFACTORY
Produced by: Daniel Kok (Singapore)
in association with Something Great – 
Performing Arts Collection
(Berlin – DE) with the support of
Dance Nucleus (Singapore)
Text Performers: Emma Fishwick (Perth), 
Luke George (Melbourne) and Anishaa 
Talag (Bangalore)

Valentine
Creator & Performer: Rachael Woodward 
Performer: Rhiannon Petersen
Sound Design: Rebecca Riggs-Bennett
Producer: Libby Klysz

KISS club
Selected Artists: Danielle Freakley,
Gabbi Fusco, Dureshawar Khan,
Rose Kingdom-Barron, Sam Nerida,
Daley Rangi, Talya Rubin & Nick James
Selection Panel: Steve Bull, Tim Carter, 
Zainab Syed & Chris Williams
Provocateurs: Steve Bull, Kelli McCluskey, 
Zainab Syed & Chris Williams
Event MCs: Brittany Green &
Graeme Watson
Original concept by: Karen Therese,
gifted to pvi collective 

Bad Baby Jean
Creative Leads: Adriane Daff & Arielle Gray 
Creators & Cast: Gita Bezard, Adriane Daff, 
Jeffrey Jay Fowler, Arielle Gray, Chris Isaacs 
& Tim Watts 
Creative Interns: Eilish Campbell,
Tamara Creasey, Jason Ng Junjie
& Daley Rangi
Composer & Sound Designer: Max Juniper 
Technical Director: Tim Watts 
Production Manager: Chris Isaacs
Digital Content Monitor: Wyatt Nixon-Lloyd 
Digital Tech Consultant: Steve Berrick 
Produced by The Last Great Hunt

Whale Fall
Director: Melissa Cantwell
Writer: Ian Sinclair
Assistant Director: Mossy Johnson
Community Consultants: Teddy Loveny, 
Emery Wishart & Brooke Bennett from 
TransFolk of WA
Producer: Alexandre Egloff

Studio Residents
Astro Morphs
(Bianca Sharkey and James Doohan)
Emma Horvát & Ómra Caoimhe
Saleheh Gholami
Annie Huang
Siahne Rogers
Brent Harrison 

Creative Developments
Daley Rangi
Jacinta Larcombe
Janet Carter
Collaborators: Caroline Duca
Jen Jamieson 
KISS club
The Last Great Hunt
The Kabuki Drop and Ian Sinclair
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Publications

Hatched National
Graduate Show 2020
Exhibition Catalogue
112 pp full color
148mm x 210mm
ISBN: 978-0-6480791-5-6
Design: Tim Meakins
Introductory text by: Miranda Johnson

Image: Hatched: National Graduate Show 2020, exhibition view.
Photo: Bo Wong.40 41



Financial Report

Image: Tina Havelock Stevens, Thunderhead, opening event.
Photo: Daniel James Grant.42 43



Directors’ Report
For the year Ended 31 December 2020
The directors present their report on Perth Institute of Contemporary Arts 
Limited (PICA) for the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

General information

Directors

The names of the directors in office at any time during, or since the end of,
the year are:

Names      Appointed/Resigned

Amy Barrett-Lennard
Robyn Glindemann
Marco D’Orsogna
James Brown
Abdul-Rahman Abdullah
Fiona de Garis
Mark Clapham    Appointed 26 May 2020 
Narelle Thorne
Susanna Castleden

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of 
this report unless otherwise stated.

Principal activities
The principal activity of Perth Institute of Contemporary Arts Limited during 
the financial year was the promotion, development and presentation of 
contemporary arts within Western Australia.

No significant changes in the nature of the Company’s activity occurred during 
the financial year.

Purpose 
The Company’s purpose is to foster the development of, and engagement 
with, contemporary arts and ideas.

Mission
To create career-defining moments for artists, life enhancing experiences for 
audiences and critical turning points in the advancement of art forms.

Values
The Company will approach everything it does in a way that is:

Generous 
Sustainable
Collaborative
Experimental
Ambitious, and
Responsive

Goals
The Company’s goals are: 

• Create high quality artistic experiences that reflect the breadth and
 inventiveness of contemporary arts practices and offer impactful 
 outcomes for artists and audiences
• Develop future focussed arts practitioners and artistic practices 
• Expand the relevance and reach of contemporary arts experiences
• Foster new ways of learning and encourage critical thinking
• Position Perth/WA as a desirable place for  artists and audiences to
 live, work and visit
• Build a committed and motivated board and staff team that reflects
 Australia’s diversity
•  Be financially resourced to sustain an evolving presence and be
 resilient to changing environments

44 45



2019 Goals and Key Performance Indicators 2019 Target 2019 Actual

Commission, produce, curate 
and present high impact 
contemporary arts projects

New exhibitions, productions and publications
created each year

30 31

Foster Experimentation
and Risk

Interdisciplinary projects supported each year 22 22

Cross-discplinary laboratory and/or commission 2 7

Percentage of artists who felt they were able to
take risks at PICA

80% 96%

Partner & collaborate locally, 
nationally and globally

Regional, national or international collaborations in the creation 
or presentation of new work

26 31

Community partnerships 38 110

Regional engagements 7 13

Develop diverse and engaged 
audiences for contemporary 
art

Audience numbers 315,000 317,572

Unpaid media coverage 750 660

Campaigns that focus on equality and inclusion 12 30

Percentage of surveyed audiences who would recommend 
PICA

95% 82%

Provide cultural leadership Participation on boards, panels, industry events 32 88

Create innovative arts 
learning experiences

Attendees/participants in learning programs 4,200 4,289

Public program attendance/participation 7,500 7,780

Maintain a committed and 
motivated board and staff

Investment in Professional Development $25,000 $18,250

Volunteers 75 34

Annual board audit and review 1 1

Build organisational 
sustainability

Cash reserves 20% 24%

Foundation corpus** $5 Mill 0

Key performance measures 
The Company measures its own performance through the use of both 
quantitative and qualitative measures. These key performance indicators are 
used by the directors to assess the financial sustainability of the Company and 
whether the Company’s mission and goals are being achieved.

** Organisational Sustainability Strategy has shifted focus to alternative income streams.

# Surveys capture those that identify as CALD, Aboriginal & Torres Strait Islander, and living with a disability
* Calculated on survey respondants for P1 exhibitions only (Feb-March) prior to COVID-19 Border Closure
^ Calculated including one-off government subsidies received as part of COVID-19 relief support
+ Specific demographics identified by the Australia Council, including CALD, Aboriginal & Torres Strait Islander, living 
with a disability, emerging artist, young person, LGBTQI+,

Members’ guarantee

Perth Institute of Contemporary Arts Limited is a company limited by guarantee. In the event of, and for the purpose of 
winding up of the company, the amount capable of being called up from each member is limited to $ 1 towards meeting 
any outstanding obligations of the company.
At 31 December 2020 the collective liability of members was $ 24 (2019: $ 22).

2020 Goals and Key Performance Indicators 2020 Target 2020 Actual

Create high quality artistic 
experiences that reflect the 
breadth and inventiveness of 
contemporary arts practices 
and offer impactful outcomes 
for artists and audiences 

Exhibitions, productions and publications created and 
presented each year

29 23

New works (visual arts, performance, interdisciplinary) 
commissioned each year

10 6

Develop future focussed arts 
practitioners and artistic 
practices 

Creative Developments and studio residencies 11 17

Labs, workshops, lectures and professional development 
forums for artists and arts workers 

12 17

Expand the relevance and 
reach of contemporary arts 
experiences

Percentage of artists identify with specific demographics + 30% 64%

Percentage of audiences identify with specific demographics # 28% 42%

Percentage of audiences who see PICA’s programs as having 
relevance

90% 82%

Foster new ways of learning 
and encourage critical 
thinking

Attendees/participants in learning programs 4,000 3,816

Public program attendance/participation 7,500 4,586

Learning & public program collaborations 17 17

Position Perth/WA as a 
desirable place for artists 
and audiences to live, work 
and visit

WA artists supported to develop or present new work 30 105

Australian and international artists supported to develop or 
present new work

15 48

Percentage of audience visiting from interstate or overseas 34% 31% *

Build a committed and 
motivated board and staff 
team that reflects Australia’s 
diversity

Staff members who identify with specific demographics + 4 6

Board members who identify with specific demographics + 4 5

Professional Development programs for staff and board 16 14

Annual Board Audit and Review 1 0

Be financially resourced to 
sustain an evolving presence 
and be resilient to changing 
environments

Cash reserves ratio 24% 41% ^

Percentage of income from core Government funding 63% 60% ^

New income sources 2 2
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Directors’ Report
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

Information on directors

The names of each person who has been a director during the year and to the date of this report are:

Amy Barrett-Lennard  
Ex-officio board member  PICA CEO 

Robyn Glindemann  
Experience   Lawyer, Environment, Native Title and Corporate
     Social Responsibility Advisory 
Special Responsibilities  Chairperson 

James Brown  
Experience   Company Director, Corporate Tax, Accounting,
     Risk Management and Treasury 
Special Responsibilities  Treasurer

Susanna Castleden  
Experience   Academic, Artist 

Marco D’Orsogna  
Experience   Company Director and Businessman - 
     Food Manufacturing and Processing,
     Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Directors 
Special Responsibilities  Deputy Chairperson 

Narelle Thorne  
Experience   Journalist, Public Relations/Event Coordination, Indigenous Affairs, 
     Community Engagement, Research and Policy Development,
     Cultural Awareness.

Abdul-Rahman Abdullah
Experience   Artist 

Fiona de Garis 
Experience   Arts Executive, Live Performance, Capacity Building,
     Venue Management, Producing 

Mark Clapham   Appointed 26 May 2020 
Experience   Company Director, Business Owner, Leasing Executive,
     Asset Management, Property Management,
     Commercial Real Estate Agent 

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year
to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.

Meetings of directors
During the financial year, 6 meetings of directors were held.
Attendances by each director during the year were as follows:

Directors’ Meetings

Number eligible to attend Number attended

Amy Barrett-Lennard 6 6

Robyn Glindemann 6 6

Marco D'Orsogna 6 6

James Brown 6 4

Abdul-Rahman Abdullah 6 5

Fiona de Garis 6 4

Mark Clapham 4 4

Narelle Thorne 6 4

Susanna Castleden 6 6

Signed in accordance with a resolution 
of the Board of Directors:

Director:

Robyn Glindemann

Date: 7 May, 2021
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Note 2020 $ 2019 $

Recurrent operations

Revenue 3 1,906,125 2,200,589

Administration expenses (247,060) (251,129)

Cost of sales (419) (23,110)

Depreciation and amortisation expense (52,413) (28,639)

Marketing and promotion expenses (106,821) (266,637)

Program and production expenses (219,321) (252,638)

Salaries, wages and consultant expenses (1,430,530) (1,367,549)

Surplus before income tax (150,439) 10,887

Income tax expense 2(g) - -

(Deficit)/surplus from recurrent operations (150,439) 10,887

Non recurrent operations

Other revenue 3 473,397 -

Surplus for the year 322,958 10,887

Other comprehensive income

Total other comprehensive income for the year - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 322,958 10,887

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements

Statement of Profit or Loss and other 
comprehensive income 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration under Section 60.40 of the Australian Charities 
and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 

 

To: the Directors of Perth Institute of Contemporary Arts Limited 

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit for the 
financial year ended 31 December 2020 there have been: 

(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the 
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 in relation to 
the audit; and 

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in 
relation to the audit. 

 

 
         DRY KIRKNESS 
 
 
 
Date: 07th May 2021      B ROTHMAN 
West Perth        Partner 
Western Australia 

 

 

 

 
  



The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements

Statement of Financial Position 
As At 31 December 2020

Note 2020 $ 2019 $

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,230,559 1,010,724

Trade and other receivables 6 79,648 6,490

Other assets 7 2,117 13,075

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,312,324 1,030,289

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 8 185,205 58,969

TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 185,205 58,969

TOTAL ASSETS 1,497,529 1,089,258

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 9 157,910 101,092

Income in advance 10 393,690 374,500

Employee benefits 11 96,421 90,904

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 648,021 566,496

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Employee benefits 11 6,742 2,954

TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,742 2,954

TOTAL LIABILITIES 654,763 569,450

NET ASSETS 842,766 519,808

EQUITY

Reserves 12 509,397 36,000

Retained earnings 333,369 483,808

TOTAL EQUITY 842,766 519,808

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements

Note 2020 $ 2019 $

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received in the course of operations 323,587 533,282

Receipts from grants 1,669,019 1,657,342

Payments to suppliers and employees (2,007,101) (2,118,569)

Interest received 4,683 5,114

COVID-19 Government stimulus 408,296 -

Net cash provided by operating activities 18(b) 398,484 77,169

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (178,649) (46,142)

Net cash used in investing activities (178,649) (46,142)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents held 219,835 31,027

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,010,724 979,697

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 18(a) 1,230,559 1,010,724

Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

2019 Retained 
Earnings $

General 
Reserve $ Total $

Balance at 1 January 2019 472,921 36,000 508,921

Surplus attributable to members of the entity 10,887 – 10,887

Balance at 31 December 2019 483,808 36,000 519,808

2020 Retained 
Earnings $

General
Reserve $ Total $

Balance at 1 January 2020 483,808 36,000 519,808

Surplus attributable to members of the entity 322,958 - 322,958

Transfer to/ (from) (473,397) 473,397 -

Balance at 31 December 2020 333,369 509,397 842,766

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

1 Basis of Preparation 

Perth Institute of Contemporary Arts Limited (“the Company”) applies Australian Accounting 
Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements as set out in AASB 1053: Application of Tiers of 
Australian Accounting Standards.

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements of the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits 
Commission Act 2012. The company is a not-for-profit entity for financial reporting purposes under 
Australian Accounting Standards.

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would 
result in financial statements containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events 
and conditions. Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements 
are presented below and have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accruals 
basis and are based on historical costs modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value 
of selected non current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts presented in the 
financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 (a) Property, plant and equipment 

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any 
accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Plant and equipment   

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis and are therefore carried at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. In the event the carrying amount 
of plant and equipment is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, the carrying amount is 
written down immediately to the estimated recoverable amount and impairment losses recognised in 
either profit or loss or as a revaluation decrease if the impairment losses relate to a revalued asset. A 
formal assessment of recoverable amount is made when impairment indicators are present (refer to 
Note 2(c) for details of impairment).

Depreciation  

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets useful life to the 
Company, commencing when the asset is ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated 
over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the 
improvements. 

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below:

Plant and Equipment  10-30% 
Motor Vehicles  25% 
Leasehold Improvements 11% 

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of 
each asset is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate.
Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. 
These gains or losses are recognised in the period in which they arise.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued 

(b) Financial instruments 

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial instruments are recognised initially using trade date accounting, i.e. on the date that the 
Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. For financial assets, this 
is the equivalent to the date that the Company commits itself to either the purchase or sale of the 
asset.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs 
(except for instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are 
expensed as incurred).

Classification and subsequent measurement

Classification 

On initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories, those 
measured at:

• amortised cost
• fair value through profit or loss - FVTPL
• fair value through other comprehensive income - equity instrument (FVOCI - equity)
• fair value through other comprehensive income - debt investments (FVOCI - debt)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company 
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Amortised cost

Assets measured at amortised cost are financial assets where:

• the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
• the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows are solely payments of principal
 and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company’s financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables 
and cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method less provision for impairment.

Interest income, foreign exchange gains or losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.  
Gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
 
Trade receivables

Impairment of trade receivables have been determined using the simplified approach in AASB 9 
which uses an estimation of lifetime expected credit losses.  The Company has determined the 
probability of non payment of the receivable and multiplied this by the amount of the expected loss 
arising from default.

The amount of the impairment is recorded in a separate allowance account with the loss being 
recognised in finance expense.  Once the receivable is determined to be uncollectable then the 
gross carrying amount is written off against the associated allowance.

54 55



2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Financial instruments (b) continued

Financial liabilities

The Company measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs, subsequently 
financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
The financial liabilities of the Company comprise trade payables.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the holder’s contractual rights to its cash flows expires, or the 
asset is transferred in such a way that all the risks and rewards of ownership are substantially transferred.

(c) Impairment of assets 

At the end of each reporting year, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an 
asset may be impaired. If such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out on the asset by 
comparing the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs 
of disposal and value in use, to the asset’s carrying amount. Any excess of the asset’s carrying value 
over its recoverable amount is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried 
at a revalued amount in accordance with another Standard (eg in accordance with the revaluation 
model in AASB 116: Property, Plant and Equipment).

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company 
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

(d) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments 
which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk 
of change in value.

(e) Employee benefits 

 (i)  Short-term employee benefits

Provision is made for the Company’s obligation for short-term employee benefits. Short term 
employee benefits are benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled 
within 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the 
related service, including wages, salaries and sick leave. Short-term employee benefits are measured 
at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid when the obligation is settled.
 
Contributions are made by the Company to employee nominated superannuation funds and are 
charged as expenses when incurred.

(ii)  Other long-term employee benefits

The Company classifies employees’ long service leave and annual leave entitlements as other long-
term employee benefits as they are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end 
of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service. Provision is made 
for the Company’s obligation for other long-term employee benefits, which are measured at the 
present value of the expected future payments to be made to employees. Expected future payments 
incorporate anticipated future wage and salary levels, durations of service and employee departures, 
and are discounted at rates determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting 
period on corporate bonds that have maturity dates that approximate the terms of the obligations. 
Upon the remeasurement of obligations for other long-term employee benefits, the net change in the 
obligation is recognised in profit or loss classified under employee benefits expense.

The Company’s obligations for long-term employee benefits are presented as non current liabilities 
in the statement of financial position, except where the Company does not have an unconditional 
right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period, in which case 
the obligations are presented as current liabilities.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued 

(f) Trade and other payables 

Trade and other payables represent the liabilities for goods and services received by the Company during 
the reporting period which remain unpaid at the end of the reporting period. The balance is recognised 
as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability,

(g) Income Tax 

The Company is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.
 
(h) Revenue and other income 

The Company applies AASB 1058: Income of Not-for-Profit Entities and AASB 15: Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers. AASB 15 requires revenue to be recognised when control of a promised 
good or service is passed to the customer at an amount which reflects the expected consideration. 
Revenue is recognised by applying a five-step model as follows:

1. Identify the contract with the customer
2. Identify the performance obligations
3. Determine the transaction price
4. Allocate the transaction price
5. Recognise revenue

Grant revenue  

The income recognition for each grant has been assessed on a high-level basis to determine whether it 
is enforceable and whether its performance obligations are sufficiently specific. For those grant contracts 
that are not enforceable or the performance obligations are not sufficiently specific, this will result in 
immediate income recognition under AASB 1058. Income will be deferred under AASB 15 otherwise.

Income from COVID-19 government grant revenue is recognised in profit or loss when the Company 
obtains control of the grant as the criteria for the grants are not sufficiently specific to apply AASB 
15 and are recognised under AASB 1058.

Capital and other related grants are recognised as an asset and corresponding liability, which are 
reduced when the performance obligation of the grant are satisfied and subsequently recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss.

 
Donations  

Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received.

Goods and services donated in kind is included at fair value when this can be quantified.

Rendering of services  

Revenue recognition relating to the provision of services is recognised either:

- at a point in time when the facilities are used or invoiced, and unable to be cancelled, or

- over time as customer consumes the benefits provided by the Company as this is when the  
  performance obligation will be met. 

 
Sale of goods  

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at a point in time, when control of the goods are 
transferred to the customer.

Interest revenue  
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued 

(i) Goods and services tax (GST) 

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), 
except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The 
net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or 
payables in the statement of financial position.

Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of 
cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, 
the taxation authority is classified as operating cash flows included in receipts from customers or 
payments to suppliers.

(j) Leases 

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a lease exists. If there is a lease present, 
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability is recognised by the Company where the 
Company is a lessee. However, all contracts that are classified as short-term leases (ie a lease with 
a remaining lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value assets are recognised as an 
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

For leases that have significantly below market terms and conditions principally to enable the 
Company to further its objectives (commonly known as peppercorn/concessionary leases), the 
Company has adopted the temporary relief under AASB 2018-8 and measures the right of use 
assets at cost on initial recognition.

The impact of AASB 16 is described below:

The Company previously leased  land and building from the Minister for Works for a period of 21 
years commencing 1 August 1991.  The lease expired 31 July 2012 and a new  lease was entered 
into with Perth Theatre Trust in October 2019. The annual rental cost payable is $1 plus all outgoings 
as defined in the lease. The initial term of the lease expired in December 2019 with options of 
renewal for two further three-year terms commencing on 1 January 2020 and 1 January 2023.

This lease is measured at cost in accordance with the temporary relief under AASB 2018-8 on 
concessionary leases. The Company is dependent on this lease to further its objectives. Without 
this concessionary lease, it would be unlikely for the Company to carry out its activities due to high 
market rates in this area.
 
The Board assessed the potential impact of adopting AASB 16 will result in recognition of right-
of-use assets of $5 and lease liabilities of $5 at the reporting date. The weighted average lessee’s 
incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities was 6.5%. The Company has elected to use the 
exemption for leases of low value assets, hence the lease expense relating to the lease of land and 
building is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

(k) Comparative figures 

When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to 
changes in presentation for the current year.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued 

(l) Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

The directors evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial statements based 
on historical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable 
expectation of future events and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both 
externally and within the Company.

Key estimates - In-kind Support

The Company received assistance from external parties during the year in the form of equipment 
and vehicle hire, catering and sponsorship, advertising and freight costs. In these instances, the 
Company has to assess a best estimate for the value of these in-kind support using values given by 
the external parties providing the support.

Key judgements - Lease term and option to extend under AASB 16

The lease term is defined as the non-cancellable period of a lease together with both periods 
covered by an option to extend the lease if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; 
and also periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the lessee is reasonably certain not 
to exercise that option. The options that are reasonably going to be exercised is a key management 
judgement that the Company will make. The Company determines the likeliness to exercise the 
options on a lease-by-lease basis, looking at various factors such as which assets are strategic and 
which are key to future strategy of the Company.

Key judgements - Performance obligations under AASB 15

To identify a performance obligation under AASB 15, the promise must be sufficiently specific to be 
able to determine when the obligation is satisfied. Management exercises judgement to determine 
whether the promise is sufficiently specific by taking into account any conditions specified in 
the arrangement, explicit or implicit, regarding the promised goods or services. In making this 
assessment, management includes the nature/-type, cost/-value, quantity and the period of transfer 
related to the goods or services promised.

(m) Economic dependence 

Perth Institute of Contemporary Arts Limited is dependent on the funding received from its principal 
funding agencies for the majority of its revenue used to operate the business. The future operations 
of the company are dependent on the continued receipt of funding from these principal funding 
agencies or from the generation of funding and income from other sources.

 
(n) Going concern 

Subject to continued funding from both the Commonwealth government via the Australia Council 
for Arts and the West Australian government via the Department of Local Government, Sport and 
Cultural Industries, the Directors’ expectation is that the Company will continue as a going concern.

(o) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations 

The AASB has issued new and amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have 
mandatory application dates for future reporting periods. The directors have decided against early 
adoption of these Standards, but does not expect the adoption of these standards to have any 
impact on the reported position or performance of the Company. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020

4  Result for the Year

The result for the year includes the following specific expenses:

5 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Note 2020 $ 2019 $

- Core grants 21 1,421,876 1,314,048

- Other grants 21 70,000 213,250

- Sponsorship/donations 308,588 443,263

- Other income 100,978 224,914

- Interest income 4,683 5,114

Total Recurrent Revenue 1,906,125 2,200,589

Other Income

- COVID-19 Government stimulus 473,397 -

Total Non-recurrent Revenue 473,397 -

Total Revenue and Other Income 2,379,522 2,200,589

Expenses

Depreciation and amortisation

- Plant and equipment 36,608 22,167

- Leasehold improvements 8,040 6,472

- Motor vehicles 7,765 -

Total depreciation and amortisation 52,413 28,639

Rental expense on operating leases

- Minimum lease payments 4,788 7,272

Cash at bank 629,659 756,623

Short-term deposits 600,000 253,201

Cash in hand 900 900

15 1,230,559 1,010,724

3 Revenue 

8 Property, plant and equipment 

7 Other Assets 

Note 2020 $ 2019 $

CURRENT

Trade receivables 9,401 6,490

Other receivables 70,247 -

79,648 6,490

(a) Financial assets at amortised cost  

Trade and other receivables

- total current 79,648 6,490

15 79,648 6,490

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and equipment

At cost 193,417 104,845

Accumulated depreciation (86,848) (69,631)

Total plant and equipment 106,569 35,214

Motor vehicles

At cost 37,273 -

Accumulated depreciation (7,765) -

Total motor vehicles 29,508 -

Leasehold improvements

At cost 90,375 65,935

Accumulated depreciation (41,247) (42,180)

Total leasehold improvements 49,128 23,755

Total property, plant and equipment 185,205 58,969

CURRENT

Prepayments 2,117 13,075

2,117 13,075

6 Trade and Other Receivables 

The carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the 
short-term nature of the balances. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair 
value of each class of receivable in the financial statements.
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8 Property, plant and equipment continued
(a) Movements in Carrying Amounts  

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the 
beginning and the end of the current financial year:

(a) Financial liabilities at amortised cost
 classified as trade and other payables

Plant and 
Equipment 
$

Motor 
Vehicles
$

Leasehold 
Improvements
$

Total

$

Year ended 31 December 2020

Balance at the beginning of year 35,214 - 23,755 58,969

Additions 107,963 37,273 33,413 178,649

Depreciation expense (36,608) (7,765) (8,040) (52,413)

Balance at the end of the year 106,569 29,508 49,128 185,205

Note 2020 $ 2019 $

CURRENT

Trade payables 100,638 75,239

PAYG/GST payables 37,305 9,268

Sundry payables and accrued expenses 19,967 16,585

157,910 101,092

CURRENT

Unspent grants 21 358,893 355,938

Deferred income 34,797 18,562

393,690 374,500

Trade and other payables

- total current 157,910 101,092

Less:

PAYG/GST payables (37,305) (9,268)

Financial liabilities as trade and other payables 15 120,605 91,824

9 Trade and Other Payables 

10 Income in Advance 

Trade and other payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 days.  
The carrying value of trade and other payables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due 
to the short-term nature of the balances.

Provision for employee benefits represents amounts accrued for annual leave and long service leave. 

The current portion for this provision includes the total amount accrued for long service leave 
entitlements that have vested due to employees having completed the required period of service.  
Based on past experience, the Company does not expect the full amount of long service leave balances 
classified as current liabilities to be settled within the next 12 months.  However, these amounts must 
be classified as current liabilities since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the 
settlement of these amounts in the event employees wish to use their leave entitlement.
 
The non current portion for this provision includes amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that 
have not yet vested in relation to those employees who have not yet completed the required period of service.

In calculating the present value of future cash flows in respect of long service leave, the probability of long 
service leave being taken is based upon historical data. The measurement and recognition criteria for 
employee benefits have been discussed in note 2(e).

Improvement and equiment reserve 36,000 36,000

General reserve (COVID-19 relief support) 473,397 -

Total reserves 509,397 36,000

Note 2020 $ 2019 $

CURRENT

Provision for annual leave 54,880 47,542

Provision for long service leave 41,541 43,362

96,421 90,904

NON-CURRENT

Provision for long service leave 6,742 2,954

6,742 2,954

12 Reserves 

Improvement and equipment reserve  

This reserve was used in prior years to record amounts set aside to fund future equipment purchases 
and leasehold improvements. 

11 Employee Benefits 

13 Leasing Commitments 

Operating lease commitments 

Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the financial statements.

Operating leases have been taken out for office equipment. The Company has elected to apply the 
exception to lease accounting for these low value asset leases under AASB 16. 

Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 
operating leases: not later than one year - 1,617
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13 Leasing Commitments continued

Lease of premises

The company previously leased  land and buildings from the Minister for Works for a period of 21 years 
commencing 1 August 1991.  The lease expired 31 July 2012 and a new lease was entered into with Perth 
Theatre Trust in October 2019. The annual rental cost payable is $1 plus all outgoings as defined in the 
lease. The initial term of the lease expired in December 2019 with options of renewal for two further three- 
year terms commencing on 1 January 2020 and 1 January 2023. 

14 Key Management Personnel Remuneration 

Any person(s) having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of 
the company,  management personnel.

The total remuneration paid to key management personnel of the Company is $ 187,558 (2019: $ 189,199).

No other Directors received any remuneration for their services.

15 Financial Risk Management

The Company’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, local money market 
instruments, accounts receivable and payable.

The totals for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 9 as detailed in 
the accounting policies to these financial statements, are as follows:

Note 2020 $ 2019 $

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,230,559 1,010,724

Trade and other receivables 6(a) 79,648 6,490

Total financial assets 1,310,207 1,017,214

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Trade and other payables 9(a) 120,605 91,824

Total financial liabilities 120,605 91,824

16  Members’ Guarantee 

The Company is incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001 and is a Company limited by guarantee. If 
the Company is wound up, the constitution states that each member is required to contribute a maximum 
of $ 1 each towards meeting any outstandings and obligations of the Company. At 31 December 2020 the 
number of members was 24 (2019: 22).

17 Operating Segments 

The Company operates predominately in one business and geographical segment being Western Australia.

18 Cash Flow Information 

a) Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows is reconciled to items 
in the statement of financial position as follows:

2020 $ 2019 $

Cash and cash equivalents 1,230,559 1,010,724

Surplus for the year 322,958 10,887

Non-cash flows in surplus:

    Depreciation 52,413 28,639

    Provision for doubtful debts/bad debts - 13,868

Changes in assets and liabilities:

    - (increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (73,158) 13,254

    - (increase)/decrease in prepayments 10,958 (5,523)

    - increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 56,818 (2,267)

    - increase/(decrease) in income in advance 19,190 23,541

    - increase/(decrease) in employee benefits 9,305 (5,230)

Cashflows from/(used in) operating activities 398,484 77,169

(b) Reconciliation of result for the year to cashflows from operating activities  

Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

(c) Credit standby arrangement and loan facilities  

The company has no credit standby or loan facilities.
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19 Events after the end of the Reporting Period 

The financial report was authorised for issue on 7 May 2021 by the board of directors.

In March 2020 the World Health Organisation declared a pandemic in relation to the COVID-19 virus.

As a result of the evolving nature of the COVID-19 pandemic and the rapidly evolving government 
policies of restrictive measures put in place to contain it, as at the date of these financial statements, 
the Company is not in a position to reasonably estimate the financial effects of the COVID-19 pandemic 
on the future financial performance and financial position of the Company, however the directors are 
ensuring adequate financial reserves are in place to manage any financial risks.

Except for the above, no other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year 
which significantly affected or could significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of 
those operations or the state of affairs of the Company in future financial years. 

20 Company Details 

The registered office and principal place of business of the is:
Perth Institute of Contemporary Arts Limited
Perth Cultural Centre
51 James street
PERTH WA 6000

21 Grants

Unexpended 
grants b/fwd from 
previous financial 
year $

Grants income 
received this 
year
$

Grants 
recognised
this year
$

Unexpended 
grants c/fwd to 
next financial 
year $

Australia Council Core Grants

- Multi-Arts Four Year Funding 154,545 312,045 (309,090) 157,500

- Visual Arts Craft Strategy 151,393 302,786 (302,786) 151,393

305,938 614,831 (611,876) 308,893

State Arts Funding

- DLGSC OIP Funding - 810,000 (810,000) -

- 810,000 (810,000) -

Total Core Grants 305,938 1,424,831 (1,421,876) 308,893

Other Grants

- Creative Partnership Australia - 50,000 - 50,000

- City of Perth Grant 25,000 20,000 (45,000) -

- Copyright Agency 25,000 - (25,000) -

50,000 70,000 (70,000) 50,000

Total 355,938 1,494,831 (1,491,876) 358,893

Directors' Declaration

The directors of the Company declare that:

1. The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 40 to 67, are in accordance with the Australian 
Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and:

a. comply with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements; and

b. give a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 31 December 2020 and of its 
financial performance for the year ended on that date.

2. In the directors opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay 
its debts as and when they become due and payable with the continuing support of creditors.

This declaration is made in accordance with section 60.15(2) of the Australian Charities and Not-for-
profits Commission Regulation 2013 and is signed for and on behalf of the directors by:

Director:

Robyn Glindemann

Date: 7 May, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF PERTH INSTITUTE OF CONTEMPORARY ARTS LIMITED 

Opinion  

We have audited the financial report of Perth Institute of Contemporary Arts Limited 
(the Company), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 December 
2020, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the 
directors' declaration. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of Perth Institute of Contemporary 
Arts Limited, has been prepared in accordance with Division 60 of the Australian 
Charities and Not�for�profits Commission Act 2012, including: 

(a)  giving a true and fair view of the Company͛Ɛ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ�ĂƐ�Ăƚ�31 December 
2020 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended; 
and  

(b)  complying with Australian Accounting Standards � Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements and Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not�for�profits 
Commission Regulation 2013.  

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the auditor independence 
requirements of the Australian Charities and Not�for�profits Commission Act 2012 and 
the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's 
APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) 
(the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have 
also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

 

Emphasis of Matter ʹ COVID�19 developments  

We draw attention to Note 19 (Events after the end of the Reporting Period) of the 
financial statements which notes that the COVID�19 pandemic has created 
unprecedented uncertainty in the economic environment and how this has been 
considered by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements. As set out in 
Note 19, no adjustments have been made to the financial statements as at 31 December 
2020 for the impacts of COVID�19. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Other Information  

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the ĚŝƌĞĐƚŽƌƐ͛ report for the year ended 31 
December 2020, but does not include the financial report and our auditor's report 
thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and 
accordingly we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard.  

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report  

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report 
that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards ʹ 
Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the Australian Charities and Not�for�profits 
Commission Act 2012 and for such internal control as the directors determine is 
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view 
and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 
directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Company͛Ɛ�ĨŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů reporting process. 

�ƵĚŝƚŽƌ͛Ɛ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as 
a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 
an ĂƵĚŝƚŽƌ͛Ɛ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
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Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We 
also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's 
internal control.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

         
          
         DRY KIRKNESS 
 
 
 
Date: 07th May 2021       B ROTHMAN 
West Perth        Partner 
Western Australia 

Image: Bruno Booth, New fossil, same molecules, 2020,
installation view of Refractive Reality, 2020. Photo: Bo Wong.



PICA Board and Staff 

Board

Robyn Glindemann  Chair
Marco D’Orsogna   Deputy Chair
James Brown   Treasurer 
Abdul-Rahman Abdullah
Susanna Castleden
Mark Clapham   (from May)
Fiona de Garis
Narelle Thorne
Amy Barrett-Lennard  (ex-officio)

Board Subcommittees:

Finance and Risk   James Brown (Chair), Robyn Glindemann

Development and Fundraising Abdul-Rahman Abdullah (Co-chair), Marco D’Orsogna (Co-chair)
     Mark Clapham, Narelle Thorne

Accommodation   Mark Clapham (Chair), Robyn Glindemann
     Marco D’Orsogna, Fiona de Garis

Succession Planning  Susanna Castleden (Chair), Robyn Glindemann

Staff 

Amy Barrett-Lennard  Director
Caris Harper   General Manager (until January)
Jeremy Smith   General Manager (from April)
Jenn Garland   Front of House Manager (from April)
Kate Gregory   Front of House Manager
Charlotte Hickson   Curator (until May)
Sarah Wall   Curator (from August)
Andrew Varano   Exhibitions Coordinator & Acting Curator (May to August)
Simone Johnston   Exhibitions Coordinator
Daniel Bourke   Install Coordinator (June to October)
Miranda Johnson   Hatched Curatorial Fellow 
Tim Carter   Producer
Brittany Green   Assistant Producer and Events Coordinator
Ashley Yihsin Chang  Engagement Programs Curator
Kira Rikkers   Communications Manager
Tim Meakins   Graphic Designer
Leslie Rigot   Marketing Coordinator
Belinda Cobby   Philanthropy Coordinator (until July)
Rebecca Kais   Philanthropy Manager (from July)
Suzanne Fielding   Finance Officer

Contract Staff

Natalie Jenkins   Acting General Manager (Jan/Feb)
Georgia Malone   Acting General Manager (Feb/April)
Anna Louise Richardson  Guest Curator (Refracted Reality)
Glenn Iseger-Pilkington  Guest Curator (nyinalanginy  / the gathering 2021)
Karen Cook   Production Coordinator (Whale Fall 2021)
Ryan Sandilands   Communications Manager (hand-over)
Amir Barber-Skwarko  IT Consultant (until October)

Consultants

Illuminating Possibility – Technical Consultants
Deltaworks – ICT Consultants 

Casual Staff

Ailsa Waddell, Aisyah Sumito, Alexander Coles, 
Alexandra Lekias, Amanda Campbell,
Amy Perejuan-Capone, Annabella Snell,
Benjamin Bannan, Brent Harrison, Bridget Bathgate, 
Bruno Booth, Cara Teusner-Gartland,
Caroline Forsberg, Clare Wohlnick,
Damian Capone, Daniel Bourke, Guillermo Kramer, 
James McMillan, Jensine Datu, Mark Haslam, 
Matthew Bairstow, Ned Reilly, Olivia O’Donnell, 
Phoebe Tran and Tron Tran.

Interns

Josef Quinn – Iluka Prize Winner

Volunteeers 

Aisyah Sumito, Graeme Watson, Henry Boles, 
Marziya Mohammedali, Noemie Huttner-Koros, 
Opie Robertson, Patrick Gunasekera,
Pia Coates and Reece Plunkett.
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Foundations

Bux Charitable Foundation
Minderoo Foundation
Sheila Foundation
Ungar Family Foundation

Bequests

Dr Harold Schenberg 
Griselda Hitchcock, estate of 
Shelagh Wakely, artist

ART Patrons

Neil Archibald and Alan Dodge
Zelinda Bafile
Sandra Barrett-Lennard
Liza and Michael Blakiston
Tim Bradsmith
Bux Charitable Foundation
Desi and Marcus Canning
Tony Chong
Marco D’Orsogna and Terry Scott
Joanne Farrell
Adrian and Michela Fini
Frédéric and Capucine Flipo
Franklin Gaffney
Robyn Glindemann
Golden Group
Di and Jeff Hay
Griselda Hitchcock
Matthew Howison
William Kentridge
Waldemar Kolbusz
Zoé Lenard and Hamish Milne
Darryl Mack and 
Helen Taylor Mack
David and Jenny Martin
Allan Miles and Steven Shadwell
Charles Morgan and 
Caroline De Mori
Fred and Georgina Nagle 
Ben and Kate Opie
Jamie Price and Gillian Gallagher
Véronique Ramén
Ungar Family Foundation
Wesfarmers

ART Commissioners

Marco D’Orsogna and Terry Scott
The Michela & Adrian Fini 
Artist Fellowship, awarded by 
Sheila Foundation
David and Jenny Martin
Ungar Family Foundation

Director’s Circle

Frédéric and Capucine Flipo
Darryl Mack and 
Helen Taylor Mack
Jamie Price and Gillian Gallagher
Dr. Thomas R. Simpson
Wesfarmers

ART Ambassadors

Bux Charitable Foundation
Desi and Marcus Canning 
Mark Clapham and 
Andrew Mulcahy
Joanne Farrell
Robyn Glindemann
Stefan Hetzel
Zoé Lenard and Hamish Milne
Allan Miles and Steven Shadwell
Max Pam 
Véronique Ramén
Patti Simpson and 
Michael Bennett
Rob and Lola Wilson
Anonymous x1

ART1000 Donors

Hoda Afshar
Amy’s Friends
Neil Archibald and Alan Dodge
Zelinda Bafile
Amy Barrett-Lennard and 
Michael Levine
Sandra Barrett-Lennard
Henry Boston
James Brown and Kim Mercer
Naomi Button
Tony Chong
Marisa D’Orsogna
Tim Doyle
Penelope Eagle
Elizabeth Fong
James Gorey
Warwick Hemsley
Gillian and Stewart Johnson
Annabel and Matt Keogh
Andrew Lu OAM and
Dr Geoffrey Lancaster AM
Michael and Jo Malone OAM
Justin Mannolini
Margaret Moore
Fred and Georgina Nagle
Perth Veterinary Oncology
Richard Prunster 
Sally Richardson
Linda and Andy Robb
Bruno Santarelli and
Robert van Dieren
Sign Supermarket
Richard Stone
Melvin Yeo and Brigette Sheen
Anonymous x2

Thank You 

Image: Artist Bruno Booth, Practice & Process artist talks, 2020.
Photo: Daniel James Grant.74



Government Partners

Thank You  

PICA’s ongoing programs are primarily supported by an investment from the State of Western 
Australia through the Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries in 
association with Lotterywest, assistance from the Australian Government through the Australia 
Council, its arts funding and advisory body. PICA is supported by the Visual Arts and Craft 
Strategy, an initiative of the Australian, State and Territory Governments. PICA’s opening events, 
public programs, family and learning programs and studio residencies are supported by our 
Community Engagement Partner City of Perth.

Individual thanks

Australia Council: Laura McLeod, Adrian 
Burnett, Melina Scarcella and Liz Tomkinson; 
DLGSC: Marty Cunningham, Karin Burrell, 
Kate Bird and Pete Guazzelli; City of Perth: 
Tabitha McMullan, Virginia Withers and Kylie 
MacPherson.

Additional Partners 

Arts Law Centre of Australia, Boston Brewing 
Co, Chicho Gelato, Discus Digital Print, Hire 
Society, Maylands Town Hall, PICABAR, 
Plastic Sandwich, Rocky Ridge Brewing Co, 
Scoop Digital, Scott Print, Sign Supermarket, 
State Theatre Centre of WA, Stormflower 
Vineyard, Willoughby Park Wines, Whipper 
Snapper Distillery.

Program Partners 

AWESOME Festival, Co:3 Contemporary 
Dance, Community Arts Network WA, 
Dance Nucleus, Flock, FRINGE WORLD, 
North Metropolitan TAFE, Perth Cultural 
Centre, Perth Festival, Perth Theatre 
Trust, PICA’s ART1000 Donors, Art 
Ambassadors, Director’s Circle Donors and 
Art Commissioners, Protoype, Arcadia Films, 
Institute of Modern Art Brisbane, of Modern 
Art Brisbane, pvi collective, Revelation Perth 
International Film Festival, Something Great 
– Performing Arts Collection, The Kabuki 
Drop, The Last Great Hunt, The University of 
Western Australia, Tura New Music, WA Music 
Association, XR:WA

Supported by

Freight PartnerMajor Exhibitions PartnerCommunity Engagement Partner Major Partners

Project Partners

ART 
1000

PICA DONOR 
PROGRAM

DIRECTORS 
CIRCLE

ART 
AMBASSADORS

ART 
COMMISSIONERS

Supporting Partners In Kind

Image: Hatched: The National Graduate Show 2020, opening event. 
Photo: Daniel James Grant.76 77



Perth Cultural Centre 
51 James St Northbridge
pica.org.au  |  9228 6300

@pica_perth

PICA

Perth Institute of
Contemporary Arts

→ pica.org.au


